

801 K Street NW Washington, D.C. 20001 www.DCHistory.org

SPECIAL COLLECTIONS FINDING AID

Object ID: VF 05

Title: VF-Subject Subject Vertical File Collection, 1894-present

Processors: Numerous Columbia Historical Society/Historical Society of Washington, D.C. staff and volunteers; rehousing by Eda Offutt and Bill Kummings.

Processed Date: 1894-present; rehoused in 2015-2016 [Finding aid last updated May 13, 2016]

Scope and Content Note: The Subject Vertical File Collection is an artificial collection of newspaper and magazine clippings that have been individually donated to the Society, collected by staff, or found in collection; they are arranged by subject. Please note, the collection is not exhaustive and is added to only on a sporadic basis; the Society does not actively collect for this collection. Individual manuscript collections may also contain clippings on many of the same topics, as well as those not included in this artificial collection.

Donor: This collection was created through thousands of individual donations and through staff efforts. Most items are not traceable to a specific accession.

Size: 51.5 linear ft. (103 containers)

Processing note: Files that existed per legacy finding aids but were not located during the 2015-2015 rehousing process are noted in [brackets] and in red.

Citation: [Item Identifier], Subject Vertical File collection (VF 05), Historical Society of Washington, D.C.

Access Restrictions: The collection is open for research.

Use Restrictions: Some material may be copyrighted or restricted. It is the patron's obligation to determine and satisfy copyright or other case restrictions when publishing or otherwise distributing materials found in the collections.

Related Materials:

See separate finding aids for the following Vertical Files:

Biographical ; Neighborhood ; Places of Worship ; Streets, Circles and Plazas Many manuscript collections also contain clippings on topics as collected by the collection creator.

Table of Contents

AFRICAN-AMERICANS	5
AIRFIELDS/AIRPORTS, Box 1	5
Apartments	5
ARCHITECTS, Box 2	
ARCHITECTURE, Box 2-3	6
ARTISTS, Box 3	6
ARTS, Box 3-4	6
ASSOCIATIONS AND ORGANIZATION, Box 5-10	6
Biographies	
BRIDGES, Box 10-12	
BUILDINGS, Box 13-21	9
BUSINESSES, Box 21-26	
CEMETERIES, Box 27-28	
Churches	
CRIME	
Education	
EMBASSIES, Box 28-30	13
ETHNIC GROUPS, Box 30-31	
FIRES, FIREMEN, AND FIREHOUSES, Box 31	
FORTS, Box 32	14
GALLERIES AND MUSEUMS, Box 32-36	
Health	
HISTORIC HOUSES, Box 36-41	
Historic Preservation	
HISTORIC SITES: MONUMENTS, MEMORIALS AND STATUES, Box 41-45	
HOSPITALS, Box 45-47	
HOTELS/MOTELS, Box 48-50	
HOUSING, Box 50-52	
JAILS, Box 52	
LIBRARIES, Box 53	
LITERATURE, Box 53	
MANNERS AND CUSTOMS, Box 54	
MARYLAND, see separate finding aid	
MILITARY, Box 54,55	
Mosques	
MUSIC & DANCE, Box 55,56	
Neighborhoods	
NEWSPAPERS, Box 56-58	
PARKS, GARDENS, AND PLAYGROUNDS, Box 58-62	
Places of Worship	

Plazas, see separate finding aid	
Politics	
POPULATION, Box 63	
Proctor, John Clagett, see separate finding aid (index)	
PUBLIC HEALTH, Box 63-64	
PUBLIC UTILITIES, Box 64	
RECREATION, Box 64-66	
Restaurants	
SCHOOLS, Box 66-70	
SCIENCE, Box 70	
Societies	
Statues	
Streets & Circles,	
Synagogues	
THEATER, Box 70-72	
TOURISM, Box 73	
TRANSPORTATION, Box 73-78	
UNIONS, Box 79	
UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT, Box 79	
UNIVERSITIES, Box 79-80	
VIRGINIA, see separate finding aid	
WAR, Box 100	
WASHINGTON, D.C. HISTORY, Box 81-89.	
WASHINGTON, D.C., POLITICS AND GOVERNMENT, Box 89-100	
WATERWAYS, Box 101-103	
WOMEN, Box 103	
Zoo	

AFRICAN-AMERICANS

African-Americans, see ETHNIC GROUPS African-American History, see WASHINGTON, D.C. HISTORY African-Americans in military, see MILITARY African-American Women, see WASHINGTON, D.C. HISTORY Anacostia Museum, see GALLERIES AND MUSEUMS - Smithsonian "Black-owned" businesses see BUSINESSES Black Panthers, see ASSOCIATIONS AND ORGANIZATIONS Emancipation, D.C., see WASHINGTON, D.C. HISTORY Frederick Douglass, see HISTORIC HOUSES – Cedar Hill and Douglass House & HISTORIC SITES: MONUMENTS, MEMORIALS AND STATUES Integration, segregation, see WASHINGTON, D.C. HISTORY Kappa Alpha Psi, see ASSOCIATIONS AND ORGANIZATIONS Landmarks and houses of African Americans, see HISTORIC HOUSES National Council of Negro Woman, see ASSOCIATIONS AND ORGANIZATIONS National Guard inc. DC National Guard – 1st Colored Battalion, see MILITARY Oldest Inhabitants, Inc., see ASSOCIATIONS AND ORGANIZATIONS Segregation,

Swimming pools, see RECREATION – Sports Schools, see SCHOOLS – Segregated Schools

AIRFIELDS/AIRPORTS, Box 1

Baltimore-Washington-International, see Thurgood Marshall Bolling Field, see also MILITARY College Park Airfield, see also MARYLAND - College Park Airfield **Dulles** Early Airfields/ Flight **Congressional Flying Club** Heliport Langley, Dr. Samuel Pierpont Lepley, Miss Annie B., "Cloudland Typist" Ludington Air Line Washington Soaring Club Wright Brothers National Ronald Reagan, see National Thurgood Marshall Baltimore-Washington International [MISSING 2016] Washington Hoover [MISSING 2016]

Apartments, see HOUSING

ARCHITECTS, Box 2

Architects, general African American Museum American Institute of Architects "Architects and their Buildings"

ARCHITECTURE, Box 2-3

Architecture, general The American Architect Change, in approach window style (1963) Criticism/ critiques of DC architecture Architecture – Embassy buildings (including chanceries, consulates and residences), see EMBASSIES Architecture publications Architecture and Builders News 1878-1910 Architecture and Builders News 1910-Architecture and Builders Journal, 1901-1902 Architecture Board of Trade News

ARTISTS, Box 3

Artists, general Artists, sculptors Artisans and craftsmen

ARTS, Box 3-4

Arts, general
Cooper Cafritz mansion, fire
Exhibition and major gift announcements
"Early Washington and its Art," lecture given by H. Paul Caemmerer February 25, 1947
Lansburgh's art center (project director Phil Ogilvie)
Arts, modern
Arts Club of Washington, see ASSOCIATIONS AND ORGANIZATIONS
Art galleries, see GALLERIES AND MUSEUMS
Museums, see GALLERIES AND MUSEUMS

ASSOCIATIONS AND ORGANIZATION, Box 5-10

Associations, clubs and societies, general

A-C D-K L-O R-Z

Alfalfa Club

Alexandria Masonic Temple, see VIRGINIA Alibi Club American Legion Army-Navy Club Arts Club of Washington **Black Panthers** Board of Trade, see also BUSINESSES Capitol Hill Club (Republican) **Capitol Hill Restoration Society Capitol Hill Historical Society Carnegie Institute** Citizens Association of Georgetown Citizen's Organization Columbia Historical Society, see also Historical Society of Washington Committee of 100 **Congressional Club** Cosmos Club Daughters of the American Revolution (D.A.R.) D. C. Community Humanities Council Don't Tear It Down - D.C. Preservation League Eastern Star Entomological Society [MISSING 2016] Federation of Businessmen's Association Grand Army of the Republic (G.A.R.) Historical Society of Washington, see also Columbia Historical Society Humane Society, Animal Rescue League Jewish Historical Society Junior League of Washington **Knights of Columbus** League of Women Voters Lincoln Group Masons, see ASSOCIATIONS AND ORGANIZATIONS - Scottish Rite and Eastern Star; BUILDINGS - Masonic National Council of Negro Women, see also Height, Dorothy in VF BIOGRAPHICAL National Geographic Society National Newspaper Publishers Association Native Washingtonians Club, Inc. Oldest Inhabitants, Inc. (African-American), aka Association of the Oldest Inhabitants (Colored) Political Clubs, see also Capitol Hill Club (Republican) Parent Teacher Association (P.T.A.) Red Cross Scottish Rite Temple, see also Buildings—Private Buildings—Masonic Scouts, Boy and Girls Society of Natives SW Citizens' Association, see NEIGHBORHOODS

SW Neighborhood Association, see NEIGHBORHOODS Sulgrave Club Supreme Court Historical Society Victorian Society Washington Building Congress Woman's National Democratic Club Women's Club, Federation of [MISSING 2016] YMCA YWCA including Phyllis Wheatley YWCA

B

Biographies, see separate finding aid

BRIDGES, Box 10-12

Bridges, General American Legion Memorial Anacostia, see BRIDGES - East Capitol Street Aqueduct Arlington Memorial **Benning Bridge Boundary Channel** Cabin John Calvert Street Bridge (Duke Ellington) **Chain Bridge Channel Bridge** Duke Ellington Bridge, see Calvert Street Bridge **East Capitol Street Eleventh Street** Fourteenth Street Frederick Douglass Bridge, see South Capitol Street Bridge George Mason Memorial Key Bridge Long Bridge Pontoon and Wartime Potomac River proposed bridges **Rock Creek Bridges** Sousa Bridge (Pennsylvania Ave.) South Capitol Street (Douglass) Taft Bridge (Lion Bridge) **Theodore Roosevelt** Three Sisters (proposed)

BUILDINGS, Box 13-21

District of Columbia government, General Armory Building Chamber of Commerce, see BUILDINGS-Private Buildings-Chamber of Commerce Civic Center (proposed) Convention Center, see also HOTELS - Convention Center/Marriott Marguis D.C. Stadium, see BUILDINGS – District of Columbia government - RFK Stadium District Building (John Wilson Building), see also WASHINGTON, D.C. GOVERNMENT – District Building Municipal Building plans, 1929-1942 Old City Hall, Judiciary Square RFK Stadium (D.C. Stadium) **Private Buildings** Private buildings, general AFL/CIO Apex, 6th and Pennsylvania Ave., NW Auditoriums [MISSING 2016] Capital Garage, New York Ave. Chamber of Commerce **Commercial Office Buildings** Constitution Hall, D.A.R. Homer Building **Masonic Buildings** MCI Center (D.C. Arena) Pan American Health Organization Pan American Union, Organization of American States Turner Arena Washington Coliseum (Uline Arena) United States government, general Federal buildings Agriculture Department Bureau of Engraving and Printing Capitol Capitol Visitors Center [MISSING 2016] Capitol, east front Capitol, grounds and landscaping Capitol, history and art Capitol, west front FAA, FDIC, FTC, Federal Reserve, GSW, HEW, IRS FBI Federal Triangle buildings Interior Department Justice Department Kennedy Center, see also D.C. Government Planning

Labor Department Library of Congress National Archives Naval Observatory Old Brick Capitol, Old Capitol Prison, Carroll Prison Old Executive Office Building (Eisenhower OEOB) **Old Post Office** Patent Office Pension Office Pentagon Post Office **Rayburn Congressional Office Building** Ronald Reagan International Trade Building Senate and House Office Buildings Soldier's Home State Department Supreme Court Temporary office buildings (including dormitories) Treasury Department Union Station - Visitors Center, also see TRANSPORTATION- Railroad White House Winder Building; Lillian R. Parks remembrances, 1961

BUSINESSES, Box 21-26

Businesses, early history and general, including gambling Businesses, general including storefront windows Stores, General Antiques, Art Galleries, Auctions, see also GALLERIES AND MUSEUMS Automobiles and Gas Stations, see also TRANSPORTATION - Gas Stations **Bakeries** Banks Barber/Beauty shops Black-owned/Blacksmith Board of Trade, see also ASSOCIATIONS AND ORGANIZATIONS Book stores Bricks, Kilns, Pottery, Cement **Builders Business schools Business services** Computer stores, including Apple Department/Furniture stores and Malls Garfinckel's Hecht's

Kann's & Landsburgh's Macy's [MISSING 2016] Raleigh's Saks & Co Woodward & Lothrop W.R. Moses Furniture [MISSING 2016] Drugstores Engineering Food and Grocery stores Funeral homes Furniture stores Hardware stores Ice Cream salons Insurance Iron works Jewelry - Silversmiths Laundry Law firms Leather Liquor stores **Limousine Services** Magic Markets, general inc. Magruder's Center Market [MISSING 2016] Capitol Hill [MISSING 2016] Eastern Market Farmers Market, NE Georgetown Market Maine Avenue market (Markets in Southwest) O Street Market Western Market Mills Moving and Storage Music **Photographers** Ankers-Capitol, George Barnard, Hippolyte Bayard, Henry Beville, C.F. Blacklidge, Mathew Brady, G.V.Buck Studio, Joseph Daniel Clipper, Peter C. Costas, Louis Daguerre, Alexander Gardner, Henry Gichner, Levin C.Handy, George Harris & Martha Ewing, Frank Hoy, Le Gray, Gustave, Fred J. Maroon, Charles Negre, J. Nicephore Niepce, Timothy O'Sullivan, William R. Pywell, William Rau, Victor Regnault, Scurlock Photography Studio, D.W. Seager, 1st daguerreotype, Ed Segal, Colin Winterbottom, Plumbers Printing **Real Estate** Repairs

Restaurants, general Bars, nightclubs, and speakeasies Sidewalk cafes Retail business [MISSING 2016] Rugs, Carpets Sand, gravel and stone quarries Science and Technology firms Shoes: Hahn, Rich's, I. Mille, Boyce & Lewis, Bootblack Inc., Storm's, Shoe repair, Steel Street vendors Tailoring Tattoos Telephone **Television and Radio** Tobacco Tourism, see also TOURISM Unions

С

CEMETERIES, Box 27-28

Cemeteries, General Abbey mausoleum Arlington National Cemetery **Balls Bluff National Cemetery Battleground National Cemetery Cedar Hill Cemetery Congressional Cemetery** Fort Lincoln Cemetery **Glenwood Cemetery** Harmony Cemetery Holy Rood Cemetery Methodist Cemetery Mount Zion / Female Union Band Cemetery National Memorial Park **Oak Hill Cemetery** Potters' Field **Rock Creek** Soldier's Home National Cemetery St. Paul Cemetery Woodlawn Cemetery

Churches, see PLACES OF WORSHIP

CRIME

Gambling, see BUSINESSES – Businesses, early history Gangs, see WASHINGTON, D.C., POLITICS AND GOVERNMENT – Judiciary, police, and crime Gun control, see WASHINGTON, D.C., POLITICS AND GOVERNMENT – Crime, gun control Judiciary, police, and crime, see WASHINGTON, D.C., POLITICS AND GOVERNMENT Vandalism, see HISTORIC SITES: MONUMENTS, MEMORIALS, AND STATUES

D E

Education, see SCHOOLS and UNIVERSITIES AND COLLEGES

EMBASSIES, Box 28-30

Chancery activities, personalities A-E F-J K-O P-Z African Australian British Canadian [MISSING 2016] Dutch French German Japanese Peru Soviet Spanish Turkish Venezuela

ETHNIC GROUPS, Box 30-31

Ethnic Groups, general African American, *see also AFRICAN AMERICAN* Asian German Hispanic/Latino Hispanic Organizations, General Hispanic Organizations, A-C Hispanic Organizations, D-L Hispanic Organizations, M-Z Jewish Jewish Historical Society, see ASSOCIATIONS AND ORGANIZATIONS Synagogues, see PLACES OF WORSHIP - Jewish New immigrants, Washington Post series [MISSING 2016] Welsh

F

FIRES, FIREMEN, AND FIREHOUSES, Box 31

Fires,

Cooper Cafritz Mansion, see ARTS- Arts, general (1 of 6)

FORTS, Box 32

Forts, general Fort Lincoln Fort McNair Fort Myer Fort Stevens Fort Washington (Maryland)

G

GALLERIES AND MUSEUMS, Box 32-36

Art galleries, general, see also BUSINESSES Museums, general American Indian, see National Museum of the American Indian American Red Cross Museum [MISSING 2016] Armed Forces Institute, National Museum of Health and Medicine Bethune Museum and Archives Children's Museum, and Villa Rosa Corcoran Gallery of Art D.A.R. Museum German-American Heritage Museum (719 Sixth Street, NW) [MISSING 2016] Hirschorn Museum, see Smithsonian Holocaust Memorial Jewish Museum Kreeger Art Museum

Museum of the City of Washington Museums, miscellaneous National Building Museum (old Pension Office building) National Gallery of Art National Museum of Women in the Arts Naval Museum Newseum, see also NEWS/RADIO/TV - Newseum **Phillips Collection** Planetarium Smithsonian Institution General African Art, see National Museum of African Art/Sackler Gallery Air & Space American History, see National Museum of American History Anacostia Community Museum Arts & Industries Building Freer Gallery Hirshhorn Museum National Museum of African Art/Sackler Gallery National Museum of African American History and Culture Natural Museum of American History National Museum of the American Indian National Portrait Gallery National Zoo, see PARKS, GARDENS, AND PLAYGROUNDS Renwick Gallery Streetcar Museum, see TRANSPORTATION Textile Museum Wax Museum

Η

Health, see PUBLIC HEALTH and HOSPITALS

HISTORIC HOUSES, Box 36-41

Named, A-Z Admiral's House, Vice Presidential house, Naval Observatory Alva Belmont House Anderson House Bell House, Connecticut Ave. Bell-Morton House, Rhode Island Ave. *Bethune, Mary McLeod*, see Bethune Museum Belmont House (Perry) **Blaine Mansion** Blair House Blair-Lee House Bleak House (Alexander "Boss" Shepherd) Bradley (Edson) Brady Estate Brickbuilder Magazine Cedar Hill, see also Douglass House Codman House **Corcoran House Crawford Hill House** Crittenton Home / Castle View Custis-Lee Mansion (Arlington House) **Decatur House** Dent House **Dolley Madison House** Douglass House, see also Cedar Hill **Duddington Manor Dumbarton House (Bellevue) Dumbarton Oaks** Dumblane Duncanson House, see Friendship House **Edes House Evermay Estate Firenze House** Forrest-Marbury Foxhall Fraser (George) Stable Friendship (McLeans) Friendship House Glass House Grant Row [MISSING 2016] **Greyhound Bus Station** Halcyon House (Stoddert) Haunted houses Hay-Adams Hayes Hearst House, New Hampshire Ave. Henderson Castle Herron-Moxley House 1852-1855 [MISSING 2016] **Heurich Mansion** Hillandale Hillwood **Hillyer Place**

Historic houses, general Historic houses, historic preservation Holmead Estates (John) Holt Mansion (National Zoo) Homes of the Presidents and Vice Presidents Kalorama Key, Francis Scott L'Enfant, Pierre (DC statues for National Statuary Hall Collection) [MISSING 2016] Landmarks and houses of African Americans Landmarks of Washington, D.C. Law House Leiler Mansion Les Ormes, The Elms (Lyndon Johnson) Lindens Louise Home Maples/ Maples Square, see Friendship House Marshall House Maryland historic houses, see MARYLAND McKim, William Duncan McLean Gardens McLean House **Meigs House** Meridian (Myers) Miller (Joaquin) Cottage Morrison-Clark Houses, see Soldiers, Sailors, Marines & Airmen Oak Lawn, Temple Heights Octagon House **Old Stone House** Prindle Houses **Prospect House** Rosedale, Oak View, Forest Hills, Red Top Rossdhu Castle Sevier House Sewall-Belmont House, see also Alva Belmont House Sim-Lee, Thomas Soldiers, Sailors, Marines & Airmen (Morrison-Clark Houses) Sousa, J. Philip Stewart Castle **Toutorsky House** Townsend House, New Cosmos Club Tregaron **Tudor Place** Twin Oaks, Cleveland Park Valley View

Van Ness Mansion Virginia historic houses, see VIRGINIA Visitation Convent, see also SCHOOLS Volta Bureau Walsh Mansion Wanamaker House Windom House Woodend, Clean Drinking Manor Woodley House Woodrow Wilson House

Historic Preservation, see HISTORIC HOUSES – Historic Preservation

HISTORIC SITES: MONUMENTS, MEMORIALS AND STATUES, Box 41-45

Historic sites Preservation League (including Most Endangered Places) [MISSING 2016] Monuments, Memorials and Statues, general African American memorials Animal sculptures Carillons Female sculptures and memorials Fountains Indoor Sculpture Outdoor sculptures, Udall controversy Security Vandalism War memorials Monuments, Memorials and Statues, general, A-L Monuments, Memorials and Statues, general, M-Z Adams, Clover ("Grief") "Awakening" Barry, Commodore John Bolivar, Simon **Boy Scouts** Braddock's Rock Bryan, William Jennings Byrd, Rear Admiral Richard E. Churchill, Sir Winston Columbus Darlington, Joseph D.C. War Memorial (World War I) Douglass, Frederick (DC statues for National Statuary Hall Collection) **Eisenhower Memorial** Ericsson, John

Ericcsson, Leif Flaming Sword Four Chaplains Franklin, Benjamin Freedom Wall (proposed) Gallaudet Statue Garfield, James A. Gompers, Samuel Grant, Ulysses S. Gross, Samuel Guns into Plowshares (sculpture from guns) Hahnemann memorial Iwo Jima (U.S. Marine Corps Memorial) Jackson, Andrew Jefferson, Thomas Joyce, John, Oak Hill Cemetery, poet [MISSING 2016] Key, Francis Scott King, Martin Luther – planned memorial Korean War Memorial Kosciuszko Memorial Lafayette, Marquis de L'Enfant, Pierre (DC statues for National Statuary Hall Collection) Lincoln, Abraham Luther, Martin Marshall, John Masaryk, Tomas Mason Island (previously Analostan Island, now Theodore Roosevelt Island) McClellan, General George McPherson, Major General James B. Meade, General George G. Paderewski, Ignacy Jan, Polish chancery [MISSING 2016] Party Animals Payne, John Howard, Oak Hill Cemetery, writer, "Home, Sweet Home" [MISSING 2016] Peace Monument Pershing, General John J. Pike, Albert

Preservation League

Pulaski, Brigadier General Casmir

Rawlins, John

Red Cross,

M-Z

Roosevelt, Franklin

Roosevelt, Theodore

Rush, Dr. Benjamin

San Martin Statue Shepherd Statue Sherman, William Tecumseh Shevchenko Monument (Taras Shevchenko) Taft, Robert A. Temperance Statue Titanic Memorial Vietnam Veterans' Memorial Vietnam Women's Memorial Von Steuben Statue Washington (George) Memorial Building (proposed) Washington Monument Wilson Memorial Witherspoon Monument World War I, see D.C. War Memorials (World War I) World War II memorials, including National World War II Memorial Zapata, Emiliano, Mexican consulate, 16th St. NW [MISSING 2016]

HOSPITALS, Box 45-47

Hospitals, general, see also PUBLIC HEALTH **Armory Square Hospital Carson Hospital** Casualty Hospital (incorporated in 1888, later renamed Eastern Dispensary and Casualty Hospital) Children's Civil War Hospitals (1861-1865) Columbia D.C. General **Doctors Hospital** Emergency, includes emergency ambulance service Forest Haven Freedmen's Gallinger **Garfield Hospital** George Washington University Hospital Georgetown University Hospital Glenadale Hahnemann Memorial Hospital, see also Sibley, National Homeopathic and PUBLIC HEALTH – Nursing Homes Home for Incurables (Washington Home) [MISSING 2016] Homeopathic Hospital, see also National Homeopathic Hospital Hospital for Sick Children Howard University Lincoln General Hospital (Civil War) [MISSING 2016]

National Homeopathic Hospital, see also Hahnemann Memorial and Sibley National Institute of Health Old Naval Hospital (Capitol Hill landmark) Providence Hospital Sibley Southeast Community (1940-), AKS Cafritz, Greater SE Community Hospital & United Medical Center Southwest Health Center [MISSING 2016] St. Elizabeths Asylum United Medical Center [MISSING 2016] Walter Reed Washington Hospital Center [MISSING 2016] Whitman Walker Medical Center [MISSING 2016] Medicine, general War Hospitals (1861-1865), see Civil War Hospitals (1861-1865)

HOTELS/MOTELS, Box 48-50

A-H

Hotels, general, including government hotels Admiral All States Hotel (1928 by government women) Ambassador Amphitrite Anna Cooper House [MISSING 2016] Annapolis Arlington Arno Aston Barbizon **Bechtel-Stratford** Bellevue Belvedere Beverage Blackstone Blodgett Burlington Cadillac Cairo Capital (also known as Exchange, National, St. Charles Hotel) Capitol Hill Capitol Holiday Inn Carlyle Carroll Arms Carroll Row

Charles Hotel Castleton City Tavern Hotel (now private club) Commodore Congressional Continental Coronet Dodge **Dolley Madison** Dunbar Dupont Hotel, see Dupont Plaza **Dupont Plaza** Ebbitt Grill & Hotel (also Ebbitt House) **Embassy Row Envoy Towers** Evangeline (Salvation Army women's hotel, originally Manger-Hamilton) Exchange, see Capital **Executive House** Franklin House [MISSING 2016] Gadsby's George Washington Inn Georgetown Inn Georgetown Manor Gordon Grand Hyatt Great Falls Tavern Hamilton Harambee House Harnett Hall (all-women), see Evangeline Hotel Hay-Adams Highland Hilton Holiday Inn Hotel 2400 Howard House Howard Johnson Hudson Hotel Hyatt Regency Hotels, I-R Indian Queen International Inn Lafayette *Lee House,* see Pick-Lee Hotel Mades

Madison Manger-Hamilton, see Evangeline Marriott Martinique Mayflower Meridian Hill, women's hotel, closed in 1968, also see All States hotel Metropolitan Montrose Morrison-Clark Municipal Hotel National, see also Capital and St. Charles O'Neal Tavern, see also Franklin House Omni Shoreham, see Shoreham Palace Park Sheraton Pick-Lee Hotel Pickwick Inn Pitts Motor Hotel Portland Potomac Powhatan Quality Raleigh Regency **Regent of Washington** Rhodes Tavern Richmond **Riggs House Ritz-Carlton** Rock Creek Roger Smith Roosevelt Hotels, S-Z Sheraton Carlton Sheraton Park Shoreham Hotel Shoreham Motor Inn Skyline Inn St. Charles, see also Capital and National St. James Statler Hilton Suter's Tavern Swissotel Washington Tabard Inn

Tunnicliff Tavern Union Tavern Varnum Vista Walker *Wardman Towers,* see Sheraton Park Washington Watergate West Washington Whitelaw Willard Windsor Park Woodner Wormley Motels

HOUSING, Box 50-52

Apartments, general

Apartments A-Z including Appoline; Arden; Ashton; Belvedere; Beverly; Biltmore; Cairo Flats; Chastleton; Columbia Plaza; Conard; Hamilton Arms; Highland; Kennedy Warren; Kennesaw; Kentucky Courts; National Harbor; Stoneleigh; Whitelaw Apartment House; Wyoming Apartments, Van Ness Center Apartments, Watergate

Boarding/Rooming Houses & Hostels Cooperatives Housing, general Housing, public Housing, 1933-1947 Rent control, 1918-1925 (WWI) Rent control, 1934-1936 Rent control, 1940-1941 Rent control, 1942-1944 Shelters

I

J

JAILS, Box 52

K

L

LIBRARIES, Box 53

General

Benning Library D.C. Public Library (at Carnegie, to 1972) Carnegie, see also Neighborhoods-Mount Vernon Triangle/Square, and Associations and Organizations -Historical Society of Washington, D.C. Folger Georgetown Library & Peabody Collection [MISSING 2016] Library of Congress, see BUILDINGS – U.S. Government MLK, Jr. Memorial Public

LITERATURE, Box 53

M

MANNERS AND CUSTOMS, Box 54

Social life and customs Theaters, Audience behavior (cell phones, texting, etc.), see THEATERS – Theaters, general

MARYLAND, see separate finding aid

MILITARY, Box 54,55

African Americans in military Airfields, general, Bolling AF Base Army, Air Force Army-Navy Club, see ASSOCIATIONS AND ORGANIZATIONS Army, Soldiers Home, see also BUILDINGS – United States government, Soldiers Home Army War College Coast Guard Marines Military History, general, (including info on Civil War Company J), see also WAR 18th C. Revolutionary War 19th C. War of 1812; Civil War; Spanish-American War 20th C. World War I; World War II National Guard inc. DC National Guard – 1st Colored Battalion Navy, Coast Guard Navy Yard

Mosques, see PLACES OF WORSHIP

MUSIC & DANCE, Box 55,56

Music, general Bands Barber shop quartets Chamber music Choral music Choral music, Messiah Dance Go-Go music Instruments Instruments, organ Music festivals, see also WASHINGTON, D.C. HISTORY- Festivals, Jazz Fort Reno Summer Concert Series Music halls Obituaries, musicians Opera Orchestras Orchestras, National Gallery Orchestras, National Symphony NSO, 1931-NSO, Dorati (1969-1975) NSO, Hume articles NSO, Kindler NSO, Kriegsman articles NSO, Mitchell NSO, Rostropovich Schools, Conservatories Public Societies Songs and Songwriters Street Music Washington Cathedral Watergate Women in Music

Ν

Neighborhoods, see separate finding aid

NEWSPAPERS, Box 56-58

Journalism

Magazines

National Newspaper Publishers Association, see ASSOCIATIONS AND ORGANIZATIONS

Newspapers, general

A-M

The Capital Spotlight Citizens Update City Partisan Foggy Bottom News Georgia Avenue Gazette Impartial Observer & Washington Advertiser In Towner

N-Z

National Intelligencer (First permanent daily newspaper published in DC) Northwest Current Southwester Washington Blade Washington City Paper Washington Post Washington Star, see also PROCTOR, JOHN CLAGETT Washington Times Newseum, see also GALLERIES AND MUSEUMS – Newseum

Proctor, John Clagget articles in the Sunday Star, see PROCTOR, JOHN CLAGETT

0 P

PARKS, GARDENS, AND PLAYGROUNDS, Box 58-62

Gardens, general Parks, Birds and Animals Parks, general Parks, Industrial A-M Arboretum Botanical Garden (includes Bartholdi Park) *Cherry Blossoms & Tidal Basin*, see NEIGHBORHOODS - Southwest Glen Echo

Glover Archbold Kenilworth Aquatic Gardens Kennedy, John The Mall Meridian Hill Park (Malcolm X) Montrose N-Z National Capital Parks Planning 1926-1937 1938-1939 1940-1942 1943-1945 1946 National Gallery's Sculpture Garden Pershing Potomac Park **Rock Creek** Schweitzer Watts Branch Tidal Basin & Cherry Blossoms in SW, see NEIGHBORHOODS - Southwest Zoo (National Zoological Park) Parklets, Mini-parks Playgrounds Trees

Places of Worship, see separate finding aid

Plazas, see separate finding aid

Politics, see WASHINGTON, D.C., POLITICS AND GOVERNMENT

POPULATION, Box 63

Population, general Epidemics [MISSING 2016]

Proctor, John Clagett, see separate finding aid (index)

Articles written by lawyer, poet, and D.C. native John Clagett Proctor (1867-1956) for the Sunday Star from 1928-1952

PUBLIC HEALTH, Box 63-64

Public Health, general Central Union Mission *Epidemics*, see POPULATION- general **Goodwill Industries** Homeless (including Homeless Veterans) Homes for Juveniles *Hospitals*, see HOSPITALS Industrial Home [MISSING 2016] Junior Village/D.C. Village Mental Health, see HOSPITALS - St. Elizabeths Asylum **Nursing Homes** Orphanages Physicians and nurses St. Ann's Infant and Maternity Home Salvation Army Settlement Houses Slums Social Agencies Whipper Home

PUBLIC UTILITIES, Box 64

Public Utilities, general Water supply, sewers—aqueduct

Q R

RECREATION, Box 64-66

Recreation, general (including Metropolitan Boys Club, Circus, Dancing) Recreation, children Radio Sports, general Archery Baseball, see also Stadiums, Nationals Park Basketball Bicycling Boating/Sailing/Swimming Boxing Football Golf Hockey Horse Racing/Hunt Clubs/Horse Shows Jousting

Kite-flying Running/Marathons Skating Skiing Stadiums, general D.C. Stadium (RFK) **Griffith Stadium** Nationals Park (1997-) RFK Stadium, see D.C. Stadium Uline Arena [MISSING 2016] Tennis Trapeze School [MISSING 2016] Swimming pools (including Airport Pool) Swimming pools (segregation of 1940-1950) Television Title IX

Restaurants, see BUSINESSES

S

SCHOOLS, Box 66-70

Schools, general (includes directory of the Education Institute) Preschools Elementary- Abram Simon, Brent, Eaton (1911), Grant, Moten, Perry, Wilkinson Junior High/Middle School **High Schools** Schools, D.C. Public 1920 to 2007 To 1920 1920-1940 1940 Washington Post series 1940-1960 1960-1970 1970-1980 1980 to 1990 1990-20000 2000-2010, including Rhee superintendence (2007) Schools, Public—Named Armstrong Ballou Banneker Bladensburg

Business High School Cardozo Central High & Transition to Cardozo Chamberlain Coolidge (Calvin Coolidge) Duke Ellington (Formerly Western High) Dunbar Eastern Franklin Hannah Harrison Hine Junior High Jackson Kendall M Street High (Sumner School) McKinley High Peabody [MISSING 2016] Pierce Elementary Randall Spingarn High School Stuart-Hobson Middle School (formerly Capitol Hill School) [MISSING 2016] Sumner School restoration (Stevens) Syphax School [MISSING 2016] **Theodore Roosevelt** Thurgood Marshall Charter School [MISSING 2016] Wallach Western High (now Duke Ellington) Wilson Woodson Schools, Private General Ballet Catholic **Georgetown Day** National Presbyterian Teachers and teaching Private – named (see below) Schools, Private—Named Benjamin Franklin Columbian [MISSING 2016] Georgetown Visitation The Heights Lowell School St. Albans Boys/ National Cathedral School for Girls St. Anselms Abbey School [MISSING 2016]

Sidwell Friends School Scholarships Segregated Schools [MISSING 2016] 1864- First Free School for Colored Children 1867- [Sup't] of School for the Colored 1870- First high school in Washington was for the "colored Preparatory H School" Southwest Washington schools, see NEIGHBORHOODS – Southwest Washington

SCIENCE, Box 70

Science, general Science and Technology, see BUSINESSES

Societies, see Associations and Organizations

Statues, see HISTORIC SITES: MONUMENTS, MEMORIALS, AND STATUES

Streets & Circles, see separate finding aid

Synagogues, see PLACES OF WORSHIP separate finding aid

T

THEATER, Box 70-72

Theater Biography Biography, general Theaters, general High school theater companies [MISSING 2016] Live theater [MISSING 2016] Theaters, Audience behavior (cell phones, texting, etc.), Safety [MISSING 2016] **Theaters A-O** Theaters, Cinema Theater, alphabetical Alexandria Arena Stage (Club Bali, Old Vat Room) Belasco Bijou Capitol **Carter Barron Church Street Theater** Circle Colony

Folger Ford's Gala Hispanic Howard Kennedy Center Knickerbocker Lafayette Square Lincoln Lyceum Mount Vernon Theater National Odeon Olney Ontario Poli's President Senator Schubert & Source Shakespeare Sylvan Takoma Theatre Theater J Tivoli Town Trans-Lux Turner [MISSING 2016] Warner (Earle) Watergate Washington [MISSING 2016] Wolf Trap Farm Woodley Memorial [MISSING 2016]

TOURISM, Box 73

TRANSPORTATION, Box 73-78

Transportation, Early history and general (including maps of trains) Aircraft [MISSING 2016] Automobiles/ Gas Stations Bicycles/ Motorcycles Buses Cross-town Routes D.C. Transit [MISSING 2016] Interstate bus service (Bolt, etc.) [MISSING 2016] Radios in buses

Buses-1930 1940 1950 1960-1970 1970-1999 2000 – (including Circulators/DC-NYC buses) Carriages/Stagecoaches/Hansons Freeways and beltways Highways and streets Highways—general Highways—elevated Highways—Mount Vernon Highways – Dulles Toll Road [MISSING 2016] Highways—Whitehurst Horses Metro/Subway General Accidents & Safety, including 2009 [MISSING 2016] Dulles Metrorail Project [MISSING 2016] Parking and traffic control Planning Railroads, Early history and general Georgetown Spur MARC to Baltimore [MISSING 2016] Metropolitan Line Potomac Yard **Union Station** Streetcars (including Cable Cars) **Capital Transit** Capital Transit Strike. 1951 One-man cars, 1930s & 1940s Before 1930 1930 1940 1950 1960 1970 2000 -Streetcar Museum [MISSING 2016] Subway - Senate Taxicabs, general 1930s 1940-1942 1943-1949

1950— 2000 [MISSING 2016] Tunnels (including Dupont Trolley tunnel) Wartime transportation Water transportation/ Boats

U

UNIONS, Box 79

D. C. Unions Labor Unions

UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT, Box 79

Government, general Employees President and Vice President Supreme Court

UNIVERSITIES, Box 79-80

Universities and colleges—general American University Army War College, see MILITARY Catholic University Center for Hellenic Studies Gallaudet University George Washington University Georgetown University Howard University Marjorie Webster Junior College—Southeastern Southeastern University & Graduate School Trinity Washington University University of the District of Columbia (UDC)/ Community College of the District of Columbia

V

VIRGINIA, see separate finding aid

W

WAR, Box 100

War of 1812 Civil War [MISSING 2016] Civil War Hospitals (1861-1865), see HOSPITALS Korean War [MISSING 2016] Rent control, 1918-1925 (WWI), see HOUSING Vietnam War [MISSING 2016] Wartime transportation, see TRANSPORTATION World War I [MISSING 2016] World War II [MISSING 2016]

WASHINGTON, D.C. HISTORY, Box 81-89

Chronology of events & General information Naming of the city; symbols; city "firsts" Magazine articles History-before 1849 1850-1875 1876-1899 1900-1949 1950 1960 1970 1980 1990 2000- (including DC Archives) African-American History Pearl Incident 1900-1950 1951-1980 1981-2000 **Businesses** African-Americans (named) Archives (D.C.) **Bicentennial** (1991) Boundaries of D.C. Boundary stones, Building Stones Brewer, Jack- "Scenes from the Past" articles from InTowner Capital Boundary Stones Committee, see Boundary stones **Demonstrations** General

Bonus March, 1932 Peace Marches, 1961-1962 March on Washington, 1963 [MISSING 2016] Poor People's Campaign, 1963 Civil Rights, 1965 Anti-Vietnam, 1967 Poor People's Campaign, 1968 Moon Rally, 1976 Return of Gulf War Troops, 1991 – South African Protests (1985-1989) Civil Rights March, 1993 Emancipation, D.C. Environmental issues (trash, pollution, etc.) Festivals, general Festivals, Cherry Blossom Festivals, Jazz Flags (D.C.) Floods, see also WATERWAYS – Potomac River, 1930-1940 Gay Rights George Washington Centennial, 1932 Holidays Inaugurations Indian History (Early Native American) Integration, segregation Jobs O'Leary's "Changing Scene" articles Parades Parades, suffragette Picketing [MISSING 2016] Post Chronicle (1877-1902) Post "Oddities" column, 1935 Prohibition [MISSING 2016] Riots Riots, 1919 Riots, 1968 Salvage and scrap drives (including WWI munitions and chemical weapons) Seal, D.C. Sesquicentennial, 1950 Spies Statistics **Territorial Government** Weather, see also Floods

WASHINGTON, D.C., POLITICS AND GOVERNMENT, Box 89-100

Buildings, see BUILDINGS- District of Columbia government

Commissioners Commissioners/Council Control Board, 1995 Crime District Building, see also BUILDINGS- District of Columbia government District government – general 1880-1920 1930 1940 1950 1960 1970 1980-2010 Finance/Taxes Home Rule Home Rule, General Home Rule, 1970-1975 Home Rule, Congressional Record Human Resources Department Judiciary, police, and crime Marion Barry Police Project 1969 Gangs [MISSING 2016] Juvenile Court/crime Mayor's Office Fenty [MISSING 2016] Gray [MISSING 2016] Morgue National Representation Planning, general, 1908-1999 Planning, cultural center see also Theater, Theaters, alphabetical, Kennedy Center and BUILDINGS, United States government, general Federal buildings, Kennedy Center Planning, public works Public Works, including Capitol Power Plant, formerly Federal Power Plant [MISSING 2016] **Recorder of Deeds Recreation Department Redevelopment Land Agency** Reorganization, 1862-1967 Statehood, D.C. vote bill Taxes, see Finance Territorial government see WASHINGTON, D.C. HISTORY – Territorial Government Voting, Advisory Neighborhood Commission (ANC) Voting Rights Zoning

WATERWAYS, Box 101-103

Anacostia River Canals C&O Canal, 1700s-1949 C&O Canal, 1950-1960 C&O Canal, 1961-2000 C&O Canal, Barges & Boats Potomac & City Canals Potomac River/Roosevelt Island Tiber Creek (Goose Creek) Waterfronts – Swamps, Springs, Aqueduct

WOMEN, Box 103

African-American Women, see WASHINGTON, D.C. HISTORY League of Women Voters, see ASSOCIATIONS AND ORGANIZATIONS National Council of Negro Woman, see ASSOCIATIONS AND ORGANIZATIONS Suffragette parade, see WASHINGTON, D.C. HISTORY - Parades Vietnam Women's Memorial, see HISTORIC SITES: MONUMENTS, MEMORIALS, AND STATUES Women in Music, see MUSIC & DANCE Woman's National Democratic Club, see ASSOCIATIONS AND ORGANIZATIONS Women of Washington, D.C. Women's Club, Federation of, see ASSOCIATIONS AND ORGANIZATIONS YWCA including Phyllis Wheatley YWCA, see ASSOCIATIONS AND ORGANIZATIONS

X-Z

ZOO, see PARKS, GARDENS, AND PLAYGROUNDS – Zoo, National Zoological Park